
The monthly newsletter is a service to the community and our members. We welcome requests 
to research specific topics from the public and accept articles on local history. Please note that 
the Society reserves the right to accept or decline any article or material at its discretion. The 
Society is not responsible for the loss of or damage to any submitted material so please keep a 
copy for your records. Please include a note authorizing Anderson Historical Society to publish 
the material. We need two things from all members or those interested in local history: please 
be sure the Society has an updated email address and please spread the word to friends and 
neighbors about the Newsletter. Please contact us at: www.andersonhistorical.com. 
 

Slate Creek Post Office 
 

 
1882 letter postmarked at Slate Creek using the only known post office stamp (SHA-4307). 

Courtesy of Ralph Holibaugh. 

 
 In 1875 the Delta Post Office was opened at the junction of the Sacramento River and 
Dog Creek. In June 1880 the post office was moved four miles north and renamed the Slate 
Creek Post Office. In 1885 the post office was closed, and operations were moved to the Bayles 
Post Office five miles to the south. The Bayles Post Office was closed in 1948 and a new 
townsite laid out nearby and the name was changed back to Delta. 
 In 1899 the Slatonis Post Office was opened at Slate Creek to serve a slate factory that 
manufactured slate shingles. In the Postal Bulletin the name was given as Slatonia. In 1902 the 
Slatonis Post Office was renamed LaMoine. 

http://www.andersonhistorical.com/


 
Slate Creek School. Courtesy Shasta Historical Society. 

 

 
Unrecorded manuscript postmark mailed in 1884. The letter was sent to eleven-year-old Homer 
Barron (1873-мфооύΦ IƻƳŜǊΩǎ ŦŀǘƘŜǊ ǿŀǎ IǳƎƘ CǊŀƴƪƭƛƴ .ŀǊǊƻƴ ǿƘƻ ƻǇŜǊŀǘŜŘ ŀ ǎǘŀƎŜ ǎǘƻǇ ŀƴŘ 

hotel and for whom the Barron Post Office was named. Courtesy of Ralph Holibaugh. 



 
The letter mailed in 1882 using postmark SHA-4307 was sent to Emily R. Bigelow (1832 New 

York- 1897).  Emily was the wife of Ralph Bigelow (1831 New York- 1911) who came to Siskiyou 
County in 1859.Courtesy of Ralph Holibaugh. 

 
Slotonis Post Office 

 

 
 Letter mailed in 1900 at the Slatonis Post Office using postmark SHA 4310. Courtesy of Ralph 

Holibaugh. 

 



 In 1875 the Delta Post Office was opened at the junction of the Sacramento River and 
Dog Creek. In June 1880 the post office was moved four miles north and renamed Slate Creek 
Post Office. In 1885 the post office was closed, and operations were moved to the Bayles Post 
Office five miles to the south. The Bayles Post Office was closed in 1948 and a new townsite laid 
out nearby and the post office name was changed back to Delta. 
 In 1899 the Slatonis Post Office was opened at Slate Creek to serve a slate factory that 
manufactured slate shingles. In the Postal Bulletin the name was given as Slatonia. In 1902 the 
Slatonis Post Office was renamed LaMoine. 
 

 
Slate Creek Falls taken about 1906. Courtesy California State University, Chico. 

 
 

Swasey Post Office 
 



 
Letter mailed between 1888 and 1892 using postmark SHA 4390. The letter above was mailed 
from the Swasey Post Office to W. E. Hopping. William Ely Hopping was County Judge from 
1872 to 1880 and elected to seven terms as County Sheriff: 1864 to 1868, 1882 to 1892. At the 
time the letter was mailed the offices of Tax Collector and Sheriff were combined. As the letter 
was mailed by mill owner John R. Creighton the subject matter was probably about taxes. 
Hopping died in office in January 1892 and Thomas Greene was appointed to fill his term. 
Hopping was born about 1830 in New Jersey. He was listed in El Dorado County in 1850. 
Reportedly arrived in Shasta County in 1852 as a miner. In the 1860 U.S. Census he was a 
butcher at French Gulch. In 1863 he was elected Captain of the Trueman Head Rifles in the 
California Militia. In 1860 he married Bridget Burk and the couple had one child Primrose 1860. 
In 1863 after the death of his first wife William married his second cousin, Harriet Hopping and 
the couple three children:  Phebe 1863 (died 1864), Harriet 1866, and William 1873. 

John R. Creighton was born on Prince Edward Island in Canada in 1846. In 1872 John 
ƳƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ Cŀƭƭ wƛǾŜǊ ±ŀƭƭŜȅ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƘŜ ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜŘ ŀ ƘƻƳŜǎǘŜŀŘŜǊΩǎ ǊƛƎƘǘs and proved up on a farm 
at Glenburn. John also operated a store at Glenburn before becoming interested in the Swasey 
MillΦ ¢ƘŜ Ƴƛƭƭ ǇŀǎǎŜŘ ǘƻ WƻƘƴΩǎ ǎƻƴ WΦIΦ /ǊŜƛƎƘǘƻƴ ǇǊƛƻǊ ǘƻ WƻƘƴΩǎ ŘŜŀǘƘ ƛƴ мфнрΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ 
be an error in postal history as John R. Crichton was listed as postmaster at Swasey from June 
1891 to March 1892 when the post office was moved to Glenburn. The first postmaster at 
Glenburn is listed as John R. Crichton while on the actual record book John R. Creighton was 
listed as postmaster from February 1906 to January 1918. The problem is John R. Crichton does 
not show up on any other documentation for Swasey or Glenburn. It is believed that John R. 
Crichton and John R. Creighton are one person. 

 
The postal history of Swasey begins with the Burgettville Post Office established in 1871 

located seven miles northwest of Fall River Mills. The town grew around a bridge built across 
Fall River by William Burgett. In 1888 the post office was moved one mile west to Swasey and 



renamed. Henneal Miles Swasey (born about 1846 in Iowa) had built a steam powered flourmill 
on the site, promoted land sales and a town quickly grew. In 1892 the Swasey Post Office was 
renamed the Glenburn Post Office.  
  
 

 
The Swasey/Creighton Flour Mill in 1971. Courtesy of Shasta Historical Society. 

 


